
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 

 

MEETING 

 

PACKET 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
July 1, 2019 



 Town Council 
 

Agenda 
Monday, July 1, 2019 

          Town Hall, Council Chambers 
 450 So. Parish Avenue 

7:00 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and 
integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community. 

 
Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen 
comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When 
several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a spokesperson to state that position. 
If you wish to speak at the Town Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up sheet and present it to the Town Clerk. 
 
1) CALL TO ORDER 

A) Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2) ROLL CALL 
 

3)    AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

4)    RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS – 
         
5)    PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker)    
    __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The “Consent Agenda” is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  The Mayor will ask if any 
Council member wishes to have an item discussed or if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an *asterisk.  
The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion separately.   
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6)   CONSENT AGENDA 
 A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – June 17, 2019  
       B)  2nd Reading – Ordinance No. 2019-162, an Ordinance Amending Section 1-62, 1-63, 2-74, 8-26, 8-81, 8-82, 13-114, 
       16-370, 17-206 and 17-264 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to Provide Uniformity in the Penalty Provisions of the Code 
       and Omit the Possibility of Incarceration for Municipal Ordinance Violations.   
       C)  Addendum to Water and Sewer Service Agreement between Town of Johnstown and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. 
 
7)   TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
8)   TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
9)   OLD BUSINESS 

 
10) NEW BUSINESS 
      A.  Public Hearing – New Hotel & Restaurant License – Cheba Hut Investment Company, Inc. 
      B.  Public Hearing – 
            1) I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2 to the Outline Development Plan  
            2) First Reading – Ordinance Number 2019-163 – an Ordinance Approving I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD 
            Amendment No. 2, Amending the Outline Development Plan for Property Located in the Southeast Quarter of  
            Section 3, Township 4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of Weld, State of 
            Colorado    
      C. Consider Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) among the Town of Johnstown, Thompson Crossing  
      Metropolitan District No. 3 and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. and (2) Assignment from W.R. Investment, LLC to the Town of     
      Johnstown 
      D. Resolution 2019-17, A Resolution Appropriating Additional Sums of Money to Defray Expenses and Transfers in Excess  
      of Amounts Budgeted for the Town of Johnstown, Colorado 
 
11)  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
12)  COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
13)  MAYOR’S COMMENTS    
 
14)   ADJOURN 

 
 
 

     NOTICE OF ACCOMODATION 
If you need special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (970) 587-4664. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 



 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  July 1, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER: 6A-C 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Consent Agenda 
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The following items are included on the Consent Agenda, which may be 
approved by a single motion approving the Consent Agenda: 
 
     A) Town Council Meeting Minutes – June 17, 2019 
     B)  2nd Reading Ordinance Number 2019-162 – an Ordinance Amending Section 1-62, 1-63, 2-74, 8-26, 8-81, 
     8-82, 13-114, 16-370, 17-206 and 17-264 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to Provide Uniformity in the Penalty  
     Provisions of the Code and Omit the Possibility of Incarceration for Municipal Ordinance Violations 
     C) *Addendum to Water and Sewer Service Agreement  
 
* The Town’s water engineer and Clayton Property Group II, Inc., the developer of Thompson River Ranch, 
reviewed the prior water and sewer service agreements for the development, to and including the water and sewer 
service agreement for Filing No. 9, and conducted an informal audit to, among other reasons, true up the water credit 
available to the development.  To clarify the correct amount of surplus dedication credit available for future filings, 
and replace the prior water and sewer service agreements with respect to the singular issue of the surplus credit, the 
Town may enter into the Addendum to Water and Sewer Service Agreement.  The Addendum was prepared by the 
Town’s water attorney. 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: The entire Consent Agenda may be approved by a motion of the Town Council approving the 
Consent Agenda, which automatically approves each and every item listed on the Consent Agenda.  If a Council 
member wishes to have a specific discussion on an individual item included with the Consent Agenda, they may move 
to remove the item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  
 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval: I move to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
For Denial:  
  
 
 
 
 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
Council Minutes 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, June 17, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at 450 S. Parish Avenue, Johnstown. 
 
Mayor Lebsack led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call: 
Those present were:   Councilmembers Berg, Mellon, Molinar Jr., and Young  
 
Those absent were:  Councilmember Lemasters and Tallent 
 
Also present:  Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, Matt LeCerf, Town Manager, Marco Carani, Public 
Works Director, Mitzi McCoy, Finance Director, Kim Meyers, Planning and Development 
Director and Brian Phillips, Police Chief 
 
Agenda Approval 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve the 
Agenda.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
 
Recognitions and Proclamations 
 
Johnstown’s youth were honored and celebrated for outstanding accomplishments in academics 
and sports.  Mayor Lebsack read proclamations honoring them for their accomplishments. 
 
Commander Sanchez was also recognized for his graduation from the FBI National Academy. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Councilmember Mellon made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the following items included for approval:   

• June 3, 2019 Council Meeting Minutes 
• Payment of Bills 
• May Financial Statements 
• 2nd Reading Ordinance Number 2019-161 
• Lease of Water Rights Agreement  

Motion carried with a unanimous vote. 
   
        New Business 

 
A.  Public Hearing – (First Reading) – Consider Ordinance No. 2019-162, an Ordinance 
Amending Section 1-62, 1-63, 2-74, 8-26, 8-81, 8-82, 13-114, 16-370, 17-206 and 17-264 of the 
Johnstown Municipal Code to Provide Uniformity in the Penalty Provisions of the Code and 
Omit the Possibility of Incarceration for Municipal Ordinance Violations – Ordinance Number 
2019-162 will provide uniformity in the penalty provisions of the Code and will be consistent 
with state law, and allows the Town to seek the maximum fine provided by state law and omits 
the possibility of incarceration for municipal ordinance violations.   



Johnstown, Colorado                                           -2-                                          June 17, 2019 
 
Mayor Lebsack opened the public hearing at 7:30 and having no public comment closed the 
hearing at 7:34 p.m.   
 
Councilmember Berg made a motion seconded by Councilmember Mellon to approve Ordinance 
No. 2019-162, an Ordinance Amending Sections 1-62, 1-63, 2-74, 7-154, 8-26, 8-81, 8-82, 13-
114, 16-370, 17-206 and 17-264 of the Johnstown Municipal Code to Provide Uniformity in the 
Penalty provision of the Code and Omit the Possibility of Incarceration for Municipal Ordinance 
Violations.  Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
Executive Session 
 
Executive session for the purpose of developing strategy for negotiations and instructing 
negotiators regarding development pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).  Councilmember Mellon 
made a motion seconded by Councilmember Young to recess into executive session at 7:37 p.m.  
Motion carried with a unanimous vote.   
 
Mayor Lebsack reopened the meeting at 8:27 p.m. and stated there were no decisions made and 
there was no other items discussed than what was originally stated. 
 
There being no further business to come before Council the meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                                    Mayor 
 
 
 
                                                                Town Clerk 
 
 
 
            



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance 2019-162 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement 









 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MANAGER 
 

REPORT 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

MEMORANDUM 
 

The Community That Cares 

 

 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  July 1, 2019 

 

CC:   Town Staff 

Local Media 

 

SUBJECT:  Departmental Report 

 

 

Upcoming Town Council Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like staff to 

schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

 07/01/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 07/08/2019 – Work Session (Sewer) 

 07/15/2019 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 07/22/2019 – Work Session (None Planned) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Police Department 

Training: 

 Lidar/Radar Training – Officers Olds and Cygan received Lidar (Light Imaging 

Detection and Ranging) and radar speed certification training. 

 Executive training – Chief Phillips attended the Colorado Association of Chiefs of Police 

annual conference. Topics covered were data challenges at the intersection of behavioral 

health and criminal justice, new generation policing: Hiring, Bias and 

Retention/Psychological fitness for duty, Cross cultural communication, and Current 

trends in emotional health of law enforcement and possible mitigation strategies. 

 

Community Policing, Outreach & Miscellaneous Items: 

 Shred event – JPD hosted the annual shred event on June 22.  A total of 198 residents 

took advantage of this free event and discarded five (5) tons of paper to be recycled. 

 

Administration, Finance, & Planning 

 WCR 50 and LCR 3 DOLA Presentation – The Town Manager will travel to Rifle on July 

16th for the presentation before the DOLA Advisory Committee to present the application 

for the WCR 50 and LCR 3 street improvement project. This grant if awarded could be 



for as much as $1 million and would provide necessary improvements to our traffic 

network. 

 Utility Accounts Updates – Staff is working to update the utility accounts with current 

phone numbers and contact information so that we can implement a shut-off call 

program.  The shut-off call program will assist us in helping our customers avoid the 

stress and inconvenience of having their water service discontinued for non-payment, 

while increasing efficiencies for the Town.   

 Fund Structure – The funds and the chart of accounts for the 2020 Budget have been 

restructured and are in the process of being reviewed before they are entered and mapped 

in Caselle. 

 2018 Audit – The 2018 Audit is in its final stages and the draft financials are being 

prepared and reviewed by the auditors.  We do expect that we will meet the July 31st 

deadline for the State.  

 GIS Program – A Contract for Professional Services was executed with InVision GIS, 

LLC, a Northern Colorado company, to kick off the development of the Town’s GIS 

program. This beginning stage of the program should produce up-to-date base mapping 

such so that the Town can produce updated Town Limits, Zoning, and other maps. Over 

time other projects may be added to geo-link documents, locate and identify utilities and 

Town assets, and for planning and informational purposes. 

 Planning Staff – Dependent upon approval of the proposed budget amendment, the 

Planning & Development Director has posted the position for a Planner I / II to join 

Town Staff and help meeting our community planning needs.    

 CML Conference – Mayor Lebsack, Councilmember Tallent, and Matt attended the 2019 

CML Confrence. Good sessions and networking opportunities were the focus of this 

year’s event that brings elected officials and municipal staff together to continue building 

great communities. 

 

Public Works Department 

Streets, Stormwater, & Parks 

 Play grounds – The playground at the Town Lake, Hays Park, and Aragon had 

engineered wood fiber chips (ADA compliant) added to play ground for safety. 

 Signs – Chevrons were installed on Parish between Aragon Park and the library showing 

road merge.  

 Overlay project – Asphalt specialties has started the overlay project. Concrete work has 

been the focus right now. ADA ramps are being replaced. Milling is scheduled to start on 

June 26th.  

 Road grading – 12 miles of road grading has been completed. This has become a weekly 

maintenance due to the increase in traffic and the wet weather. 

 Road survey – Survey is underway. We are on schedule to get a report back in front of 

Town council by end of September.  

 Drainage – All drainage structures were clean after storm. Looked at drainage issues at 

Fremont and Estes. Will be looking to improve drainage in the 2020 budget year.  

Water & Wastewater 

 Water plant - Plant has seen an increase in daily flows. We are not seeing peak demand 

yet, and we can thank Mother Nature for watering the grass for us. We are pulling water 

from both reservoirs. Crews are monitoring for the potential for the rise of Geosmin. This 



is an organic compound with a distinct earthy flavor and aroma produced by certain 

bacteria Crew will be adding powdered activated carbon once detection has started. South 

fence is being installed at water plant. This will completely enclose the plant and help to 

keep out trespassers and vandals.  

 Plant improvements – Staneck has completed the saturator and the removal of old piping. 

Fine tuning of actuators and small punch list is all that remains. Improvement should be 

at 100% by week of the July 1st. Final cost of this project went over by $5,331.92 for the 

addition of surge protectors on the VFD’s, but it was still within the budget as approved 

by the Council for the entire project.  

 Cemetery – Crews have the cemetery looking great.  

 Central Wastewater Plant Items – We are working on design phase of the aeration project 

at the central plant. This project was budgeted for 2019 to add aeration to the lagoons to 

help with mixing which provides added oxygen for suspended solids and ammonia 

removal.  

o Effluent sample pump at central plant has been repaired, crews can get on line 

monitors working which is required by the state.  

 Lowpoint – Fan press is working well we are averaging about 20 tons per week of sludge 

removal as opposed to 320 tons of liquid per week going from one plant to another. 

Sludge hauling is being done by Veris Environmental.  

 Lift stations – Quarterly maintenance of our lift stations has been completed. All grit and 

sediment has been removed.  



 
AGENDA ITEM 10A 
 
 
 
 

New Hotel & Restaurant 
Liquor License 

 
Cheba Hut Investment Company Inc. 

 
(Public Hearing) 

 
 



*NEW LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE – 

  

1. Open public hearing. 

2. Receive information from staff. 

3. Receive information from applicant.   

4. Receive information from “parties in interest.”  Parties in interest may also cross-examine 
the applicant.   

(Parties in interest include adult residents of the designated neighborhood, the owner or manager 
of any business located within the designated neighborhood and the representative of any school 
within 500 feet of the proposed license.  The representative of any organized neighborhood group 
within the designated neighborhood may present evidence, but may not cross-examine witnesses.)  

5.  Discretionary:  Receive information from “others.”  (Only if the testimony would aid 
Council in considering the application.) 

6. Additional questions from Council, if any.   

6. Close the public hearing.  (No more questions from Council.) 

7. Discussion and deliberation among Council. 

8. Make a decision and/or motion from Council.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

For Approval: I move to approve the Application for a Hotel & Restaurant License for 
Cheba Hut Investment Company Inc. 

For Denial:  I move to deny approval of the Application for a Hotel & Restaurant License  
for Cheba Hut Investment Company Inc.     

 



 
 
 
 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
 
AGENDA DATE:  July 1, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER:  10A 
 
SUBJECT: *Public Hearing – Cheba Hut Investment Company, Inc. - New Hotel and Restaurant License 
  
ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Issuance of a New Hotel and Restaurant License  
 
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk, Town Attorney 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: This item is a public hearing to receive comments regarding the proposed new 
Hotel and Restaurant License for Cheba Hut Investment Company, Inc. DBA Cheba Hut, located at 4948 Thompson 
Parkway, Johnstown.  When approving or denying an application, the Council acts as the local licensing authority 
and must consider if the reasonable requirements of the defined neighborhood are not presently being met by 
existing establishments, the desires of the adult inhabitants, and the number, type and availability of other similar 
liquor establishments located in or near the petitioned neighborhood as well as the moral character of the applicants. 
 _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: The Town Attorney has reviewed the documents submitted and will be available at the meeting 
to answer questions. 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: The applicant has paid all applicable fees for both the State and the Town. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider issuance of a new Hotel and Restaurant License for Cheba Hut. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval: I move to approve the issuance of a Hotel and Restaurant License for Cheba Hut. 
 
For Denial:  I move to deny the issuance of a new Hotel and Restaurant License for Cheba Hut.   
 

Reviewed: 
 
_________________________ 
Town Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                   Liquor License     
                     Application 
 
  





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     Results of the Liquor Licensing 
                         Survey 
              
 
  



 
June 19, 2019 
 
 
RESULTS OF THE LIQUOR LICENSE SURVEY REGARDING:  Cheba Hut 
                                                                                               4948 Thompson Parkway 

           Johnstown, CO 80534  
                                                                                                                                                            

 
 
Applicant: Cheba Hut Investment Company 
Purpose:      Application for a Hotel and Restaurant License 
 
 
ISSUE:  A petition was circulated to determine if the needs of the neighborhood and desires  
of the inhabitants were or were not being presently met by existing similar alcoholic beverage 
outlets.  Those in favor of Cheba Hut being granted a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License 
indicated by checking the “Favor – YES” column of the signature sheet and those opposed 
checked the “Oppose - NO” column.   The results were as follows: 
 
 

Favor 
“YES” 

Oppose 
“NO” TOTAL SIGNATURES 

97% 92 3% 3 95 
 
 
SURVEY STATISTICS 
 

 Favor “YES” Oppose “NO” TOTAL 
Business Survey Results 100% 25 --- 0 25 

Residential Survey Results 96% 67 4% 3 70 

 
Percentages in this report have been rounded to the nearest whole number. 

 
 

 BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL TOTAL 
No Response 0 240 240 
Declined to Participate                                   8 25 33 
Not Qualified to Sign 10 1 11 
Disqualified 0 0 0 
“No” Signatures 0 3 3 
“Yes” Signatures 25 67 92 
TOTAL CONTACTS & ATTEMPTS 43 336 379 

 
 

 
   Pg 1 

 



SURVEY STATISTICS   Cheba Hut 
 

>Number of Businesses and Residents Contacted: 379  Attempts –  240 No Response = 139 
>Business Survey Participation Rate: 25  Signatures/ 33 Qualified Contacts = 76% 
>Residential Survey Participation Rate: 70  Signatures/ 95 Qualified Contacts = 74% 
>Percentage of Residents Home During Survey: 96  Contacts/ 336  Attempts = 29% 

 
 
 
REASONS FOR OPPOSITION SIGNATURES REASONS FOR DECLINING TO PARTICIPATE 

Enough / Too Many 2 Too Busy 12 
No Reason 1 Against Company Policy 8 

Total 3 Not Interested 8 
  Don't Sign Any Petitions / Surveys 5 
  Total 33 
  CONTACTS NOT QUALIFIED TO SIGN  
  Owner / Manager Unavailable 10 
  Non-Resident 1 
  Total 11 
    

 
 
PETITION METHODOLOGY 

• Survey Date and Times:   
 

Residential: Saturday June 15, 2019 12:00 pm – 5:00 pm 
Residential: Sunday June 16, 2019 12:00 pm – 5:00 pm 
Business: Wednesday June 19, 2019 10:00 am – 1:00 pm 

           
• Survey Areas:  Circulators started in areas closest to the proposed licensed site and obtained 

signatures throughout the boundary area.  Please see attached map.    
 

• Circulators of the Survey:  There was one circulator for this survey.  Prior to the start  
of the survey, the circulator was briefed on the type of liquor license application, the areas to  
be surveyed and reminded to remain unbiased in his approach to residents and business people.  
The circulator had with him a face sheet with the applicant business name, location and hearing 
information, instructions, and the petition/survey issue along with signature sheets and a map of 
the proposed location. The circulator used tally sheets to record all contacts, attempts and  
reasons for opposition signatures and refusals.  Upon conclusion of the survey, the circulator 
signed notarized affidavits of circulation.  The original survey packets were pre-filed with the 
Johnstown City Clerk’s Office.       
 
                                                             

 
Pg 2 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Map of area petitioned 
                          

 



    
  

P
g 3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Police Report 
 





 
AGENDA ITEM 10B 
 
 
 
 
                       Public Hearing 
     (I-25 Gateway Center Filing #4 PUD 
                     Amendment No. 2) 
 
               (Ordinance No. 2019-163 
                         First Reading) 
                       

 
 



*PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE –Amendment to the I-25 Gateway Center Filing 
No. 4 PUD Outline Development Plan 

1. Open public hearing. 

2. Receive information from staff. 

3. Receive information from applicant. 

4. Receive information from public. 

a. Ask to hear from anyone who supports the Amendment. 

b. Ask to hear from anyone who opposes the Amendment. 

5. Receive rebuttal from applicant.  (Discretionary and only if warranted at the time.) 

6.  Additional questions from Council, if any.  (Council may ask questions at any time until 
the hearing is closed.) 

7. Close the public hearing.   

8. Discussion and deliberation among Council. 

9. Make a decision and/or motion from Council.  

SUGGESTED MOTIONS 

For Approval:   I move that we approve Ordinance 2019-163, and Ordinance Approving 
 I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2, Amending the Outline  
Development Plan for Property Located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 3, Township  
4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of  
Weld, State of Colorado on 1st reading.  
 
Conditional:  I move that we approve Ordinance 2019-163, an Ordinance Approving I-25  
Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2, Amending the Outline  
Development Plan for Property Located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 3, Township  
4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of  
Weld, State of Colorado, on 1st reading subject to the following modifications………. 
 
For Denial:  I move that we deny Ordinance 2019-163. 

 

 



 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

 
AGENDA DATE:  July 1, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER:  10B 
 
SUBJECT:  1: Public Hearing - I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2 
 2:  1st Reading of Ordinance 2019-163  
 
ACTION PROPOSED:   1: Consider the I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2, to the 

Outline Development Plan. 
 2: Consider Ordinance 2019-163 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Kim Meyer, Planning & Development Director 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
I-25 Gateway Center, LLC, owner of the lots this amendment impacts, requests an amendment to the I-25 Gateway 
Center Filing No Four PUD Outline Development Plan. The proposed amendment is summarized as follows: 

• expands the acreage for “Area C” by 4.46 acres to a total of 16.96 of the 45.46 acres, permitting retail, 
commercial, and light industrial uses, reducing “Area A” (retail & commercial) by that same acreage to 4.71 
acres total (48.6% reduction); and 

• the uses in Area C currently include “Storage, Parking and Transportation Uses” – this amendment would add 
to PUD section D.3.A.4.a: “Outdoors when screened from the street with opaque fencing or wall.” Current 
PUD language restricts storage to inside enclosed buildings only. 
 

Staff comments and recommendations are found in a memo addressed to the Planning & Zoning Commission dated 
June 12, 2019 (copy attached), summarized as follows: 

1. The PUD amendment request is in keeping with and furthers the Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives.  
2. Staff believes this amendment is compatible with the surrounding area and will serve to enhance the viability 

and developability of these lots, while continuing to protect the view corridor along a vital Town gateway. 
3. Staff recommended approval with conditions to clarify the intended changes to the PUD text and address non-

substantive text errors. 
 
A public hearing on this project was held on June 12, 2019, by Planning & Zoning Commission – no public input was 
given. The commission recommended approval by the Town Council with the following conditions: 

1. Modification to wording in the PUD document, to ensure the lots along I-25 frontage are excluded from this 
use change, and that outdoor storage remains compatible in this Town Gateway area, as follows:  
PUD document D.3.A.4.a: “Outdoor storage is permitted on lots in the Gateway Center Filing 4, Block 3, 
including Lots: 1, 2, 4, 7 and 8 only, as a primary use when fully screened from view of streets and nearby 
properties, via a functional combination of structures, landscaping, berming, and/or solid fencing or walls that 
incorporate projections/recesses of 4-5 feet or more at least every 100 feet;” and 

2. Spelling errors and minor clarifications to non-substantive “housekeeping” language updates are made, per 
Staff’s recommendations.  

These conditions have been satisfied. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE: The Town Attorney has reviewed the amended PUD. 
 

FINANCIAL ADVICE: No impact anticipated. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Approval of Amended PUD, as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 



SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
Approval:  I move that we approve Ordinance 2019-163, and Ordinance Approving I-25 Gateway Center Filing No. 
4 PUD Amendment No. 2, Amending the Outline Development Plan for Property Located in the Southeast Quarter 
of Section 3, Township 4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of Weld, 
State of Colorado on 1st reading.  
 
Conditional:  I move that we approve Ordinance 2019-163, an Ordinance Approving I-25 Gateway Center Filing 
No. 4 PUD Amendment No. 2, Amending the Outline Development Plan for Property Located in the Southeast 
Quarter of Section 3, Township 4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of 
Weld, State of Colorado, on 1st reading subject to the following modifications………. 
 
Denial:        I move that we deny Ordinance 2019-163. 
  
  

Reviewed: 
 
___________________________ 
Town Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning and Zoning  
Information 

 



 

  
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Wednesday, June 12, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
Agenda 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
  

III. Public Comments regarding items not on the Agenda (may be limited to 3 minutes each) 
 

IV. Public Hearings: 
a. I-25 Gateway Center PUD, Amendment No. 2 

 
V. New Business 

a. Approval of Minutes of May 22, 2019 
 

VI. Department Report 
  

VII. Commissioner Reports and Comments 
 

VIII. Adjourn 



 

1 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
  
ITEM:   Amendment to I-25 Gateway Center PUD 
  
PROJECT:  I-25 Gateway Center PUD Amendment No 2 
 
LOCATION:   West of I-25 / North of Hwy 60                      
  
APPLICANT:   Vogel & Associates, on behalf of Gateway Owners, LLC (owner) 
 
STAFF:  Kim Meyer, Planning & Development Director 
 
HEARING DATE: June 12, 2019 
 
  
RELEVANT MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS (EXCERPTS) – See Attachment A 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Town of Johnstown is considering a request for an amendment to the text and map of the I-25 Gateway Center 
PUD. The amendment will: 

• expand the acreage for “Area C” by 4.46 acres to a total of 16.96 of the 45.46 acres, permitting retail, 
commercial, and light industrial uses, reducing “Area A” (retail & commercial) by that same acreage to 
4.71 acres total (48.6% reduction).  

  Current Acreage Proposed Acreage 
Area A Retail/Commercial 9.17 *4.71 (-4.46) 
Area B All A + Light Industrial 13.96 13.96 
Area C All A & B + Light Industrial 12.50 *16.96 (+4.46) 
Streets/ROW  6.28 6.28 
Outlots – LS & 
Detention 

 3.73 3.73 

TOTAL  45.46 45.46 
 

• the uses in Area C currently include “Storage, Parking and Transportation Uses” – the amendment would 
add “D.3.A.4.a Outdoors when screened from the street with opaque fencing or wall.” Current PUD 
language restricts storage to inside enclosed buildings only. 

 
Note: Staff has clarified with the Applicant that the intent is not to expand outdoor storage to the Area C lots along 
the I-25 corridor, but only to permit this use internally, between Gateway Drive and Gateway Circle. Proposed 
rewording to ensure this is accommodated in Staff’s recommended motion to the Commission. 



I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD, Amendment No 2 
June 12, 2019 

2 

 
See Attachment B for Vicinity Map & Attachments C & D for Amendment Materials for more detailed information.  
PROPERTY DATA 
Location:   Multiple lots North of WCR 48, East of I-25 in the Gateway Center 

Subdivision 
 
Property Size:     45.46 Acres 
 
Current Zoning/Land Use(s):  PUD-B - “I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four” 
 
Surrounding Zoning/Land Uses: North: Weld Co “A” Agriculture zone district 

South:  PUD-MU – vacant (development proposal pending) 
East: I-25 and PUD-MU – “Vista Commons,” vacant 
West: Gateway Commercial (GC) zone district – light industrial 

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation:  Gateway Center  
 
BACKGROUND  
Annexation:  Gateway Center Annexation No 2, 02/05/1996, 159.19 acres 
Subdivision: I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four, 03/14/2003, 45.46 acres 
Zoning:  Gateway zone district I-25 Gateway Center, 02/05/1996 

PUD-B Overlay “I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD,” 10/21/2002, (Ord 2002-699 / Rec 
#3010629) 

 
This PUD overlay district was approved in 2002. The PUD documents created three use areas – A, B, and C. Area 
A (9.17 ac.) permits retail and commercial uses, further clarified in the document; Area B (13.96 ac) permits Uses 
in A, in addition to select light industrial uses; Area C (16.96 ac.) permits all uses in A and B, plus an expanded 
list of light industrial uses.  
 
The overall Gateway Center subdivision created 23 buildable lots ranging from 0.87-2.49 acres and one 3.473 
acre non-buildable outlot, likely created to handle stormwater detention for the whole subdivision. To date, Staff 
identified six of these lots that have been/are being developed and built upon, with the remaining 17 still vacant. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW & ANALYSIS 

Goal CF-3 (Community Form). An enhanced character of development and overall image. 
Screening. Provide screening of service or loading areas, or other non-essential site features, with 
landscaping, screen walls, fences, or other means between incompatible land uses or site areas.  
 
Outdoor Storage. Enforce existing Town ordinances regarding outdoor storage of junk, machinery, etc. 
Require all permitted outdoor storage to be screened from public view. 

 
Staff interprets this section to accommodate outdoor storage, as long as it is well-screened from adjoining/nearby 
properties and streets. Provided that development of outdoor storage is brought forth to the Town in a form 
consistent with the Concept Plan (See Attachment D) provided by the Applicant, Staff believes this type of well-
screened and designed development could be considered compatible with this Gateway Center area. As Area C 
also extends along six lots in the northern portion of the PUD, immediately adjacent to I-25 and that vital view 



I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD, Amendment No 2 
June 12, 2019 

3 

corridor, Staff is proposing modified language to the PUD that would ensure the Applicant’s intent and Staff’s 
requirement to not permit outdoor storage in this corridor are appropriately represented in the final PUD 
document(s). 
 

Gateway Center (Chapter 3 inset) 
Gateways are the recognizable entries to the community and are typically associated with the local 
highway and arterial corridors. Gateway locations provide opportunities to both identify the 
community and to promote the desired community image. 
 

Gateway Centers mark the entryways into the Town of Johnstown. As denoted on the Land Use 
Framework Map, these Gateway Centers are intended to provide regional- serving retail and office 
uses, as well as an assortment of medium to high density housing options. Typically, the average 
residential density within and around the center area is 8 to 12 dwelling units per gross acre. 
 

The mixed-use economic center could include larger economic anchors including well designed big box 
retail. Commercial square footage will generally exceed 200,000 square feet. The center could also 
include a central park or plaza. Gateway Centers will typically be a minimum of 40 acres, and should 
include accompanying design guidelines to ensure developments are befitting of the Town of 
Johnstown. Design elements should include facades treatments, landscaping, plazas, public art and 
other gateway elements. 
 

Desirable Gateway Centers include I-25 interchanges and major intersections along US 34 
and SH60. Gateway Centers should link to regional transit opportunities and include 
locations for park-and-ride and BRT facilities. 
 

This PUD is aptly titled the I-25 Gateway Center as it is placed firmly on a hard corner of the I-25 and Hwy 60 
interchange – Johnstown’s primary highway interchange from I-25. Staff believes this area is a vital contributor 
to Johnstown’s image and identity in the region, which is likely why much of the land immediately adjacent to 
the I-25 corridor in this PUD was originally designated for retail and lighter-intensity commercial and light 
industrial uses. The proposed amendment will only affect the more internal lots between Gateway Drive and 
Gateway Circle, as illustrated on the Concept Plan drawing, leaving the WCR48 and I-25 frontages free of outdoor 
storage as a primary permitted use. 
 
MUNICIPAL CODE REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
I-25 Gateway Center PUD is the prevailing overlay zoning. The current PUD language has been interpreted to 
require storage uses be “conducted entirely within an enclosed structure.” With the requested text and map 
changes, outdoor storage would be permitted as a primary use, with full screening from view from nearby 
properties and streets, such as is illustrated in the Concept Plan. 

APPLICANT REQUEST & RESPONSE 
The Applicant worked with staff to submit information as requested, and discussed and negotiated various 
elements of the proposal. They provided required application materials that include: proposed PUD amendment 
language and maps, as well as an “illustrative” concept plan. (See Attachments C & D)  
 
The letter submitted with the application indicates that 77% of the lots developed in this overall I-25 Gateway 
Center (not just the PUD) have included more commercial and light industrial uses, than retail. Hence, the desire 
to modify several of the Area A lots to Area C, which would provide a wider range of light industrial uses. 



I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD, Amendment No 2 
June 12, 2019 

4 

 
COMMUNITY / NEIGHBORHOOD RESPONSE 
This public hearing was posted in the Johnstown Breeze on Thursday, May 30, 2019. The Applicant provided 
stamped addressed envelopes which Staff used to provide a mailed public notice on May 30, 2019, to all property 
owners within 500 feet of the boundaries of the PUD, informing the immediate neighborhood of this meeting. No 
neighborhood meeting was required. 
 
As of the date of publication of this Staff Report, no inquiries were received by Staff. 
 
ANALYSIS OF THE SITE, PROJECT, AND POTENTIAL IMPACTS 
Site: The area of the PUD itself poses no atypical or notable conditions (i.e., topography, geometry, context) that 
would negatively impact or restrict the ability to reasonably develop and use these lots for the uses listed and 
proposed in the PUD documents.  
 
The current PUD list of uses provides a wide range of retail, commercial, and light industrial uses that are 
permitted and accessory in nature. There are no special or conditional uses listed in the PUD.  
 
Project: The proposed amendment would increase the area for light industrial in the I-25 Gateway Center PUD 
area by 4.46 acres, as well as allow for outdoor storage as a permitted use by right. As mentioned, the six (6) lots 
along I-25 (12.914 ac.) are in Area C will be excluded from this use, with language proposed by Staff in the 
recommended motion.  
 
Staff notes that the existing development in this area is typically more industrial in nature. The extended period 
of time in which this area has taken to develop, and the amount of vacant land remaining along I-25 may illustrate 
that retail uses in this subdivision are not appropriate and the PUD is effectively not “zoned” property, in which 
case an amendment to the PUD may be a logical and functional solution.  
 
The market argument posed by the Applicant is that light industrial, and outdoor storage, is what the market is 
currently seeking in this area. In Staff’s view, the lack of more immediate development likely has several sales-
affective factors, of which this issue may be among them. Additionally, it is possible that with recent development 
of the Loaf n’ Jug and Subway, that additional retail and more commercial uses may follow suit, with that 
development serving as a beacon to more retail development that may be less-inclined to pay the higher land and 
rent prices found in the 2534 area. This unknown and variable factor is often why market conditions and financial 
considerations rarely factor into changes to zoning – the bigger question becomes… “Is this a logical and desired 
use for the Town, supported by our Comprehensive Plan, and serving the best and highest use for the Town’s 
purposes?” 



I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD, Amendment No 2 
June 12, 2019 

5 

The Comprehensive Plan, as mentioned above, does support 
outdoor storage, with appropriate screening; and describes the 
Gateway, with support for high-quality entryways into the 
Town. Outdoor Storage is permitted in the adjacent & 
underlying Gateway District – with Sec 16-273 (b) requiring: 
“All materials and products stored outdoors shall be fully 
concealed from view of persons in adjacent residential and 
commercial districts and public streets by a solid fence or wall 
up to eight (8) feet in overall height.” 
 
Area/Neighborhood:  An informal aerial survey of the entire 
Gateway Center reveals significant amounts of outdoor storage 
areas – PUD in yellow / apparent storage areas in red – typically 
as an accessory use to an office, warehouse or industrial use. 
Note that the aerials used are Weld County’s, taken in 2018. 
Staff makes no assertions as to whether these storage areas are 
currently in compliance with screening, or were included with 
original approvals. 
 
The lots in this subdivision are larger lots, with long property boundaries. Staff feels any screening should also 
incorporate projections or recesses at regular intervals to avoid long (>100') corridor effects.  
 
Traffic/Transportation Impact: The impact of the proposed amendments would not be anticipated to 
significantly or adversely affect anticipated traffic volumes, patterns, or systems in the development. 
 
Infrastructure (Water/Wastewater): No significant impact anticipated. 
  
Stormwater Management / Floodplain: No impact anticipated. Not in a floodplain. 
 
STAFF SUMMARY 
The PUD amendment request is in keeping with and furthers the Comprehensive Plan goals and objectives. Staff 
believes this amendment is compatible with the surrounding area and will serve to enhance the viability and 
developability of these lots, while continuing to protect the view corridor along a vital Gateway to the Town. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval with Conditions 
 
RECOMMENDED PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS AND MOTIONS 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Planning & Zoning Commission finds that the 
proposed request for the I-25 Gateway Center PUD, Amendment No 2, furthers the Town’s Comprehensive Plan 
goals, is compatible with all other applicable Town standards and regulations, and maintains the harmonious 
relationships stated in the PUD-B purpose, and therefore moves to recommend to the Town Council approval of 
the proposed PUD amendment, with the following conditions: 

Gateway Center Storage Survey 



I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD, Amendment No 2 
June 12, 2019 

6 

1. Modification to wording in the PUD document, to ensure the lots along I-25 frontage are excluded 
from this use change, and that outdoor storage remains compatible in this Town Gateway area, as 
follows:  
PUD document D.3.A.4.a: “Outdoor storage is permitted on lots in the Gateway Center Filing 4, 
Block 3, including Lots: 1, 2, 4, 7 and 8 only, as a primary use when fully screened from view of 
streets and nearby properties, via a functional combination of structures, landscaping, berming, and/or 
solid fencing or walls that incorporate projections/recesses of 4-5 feet or more at least every 100 feet; 
 

2. Spelling errors and minor clarifications to non-substantive “housekeeping” language updates are 
made, per Staff’s recommendations. 

 
ALTERNATE MOTIONS 
A. Motion to Approve with no Conditions: “…and therefore moves to recommend to the Town Council approval 

of the I-25 Gateway Center PUD Amendment No 2 as presented.” 
(Staff note: this would allow outdoor storage on nearly 13 acres along I-25 corridor.) 
 

B. Motion to Deny: “I move that the Commission recommend to the Town Council denial of the I-25 Gateway 
Center PUD Amendment No 2, with the following findings: the proposed amendment…” 

Examples/options: 
a. is not in keeping with or furthering the Comprehensive Plan with regard to protecting the Town’s 

Gateway areas. 
b. introduces a use that the Commission finds incompatible with the surrounding area and the intent 

of the PUD and the Comprehensive Plan 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Page Content 
A    7 Municipal Code Excerpts 
 
B    10 Vicinity Map  
 
C   11 Application Materials 
 
D   23 PUD Plan & Illustrative Concept Plan  
 

  



Vicinity Map 

I-25 Gateway Center Filing No Four PUD
PUD Amendment No 2 

June 2019 

Source: Weld County Assessor - https://www.co.weld.co.us/maps/propertyportal/ 

Hwy 60 

I-2
5 PUD-MU 

Vista 
Commons 

PUD-MU 

Development 
Plan In Review 

PUD-MU 

Development 
Plan In Review 

Weld Co 
A 

Weld Co 
A 

Weld Co 
A 

PUD-MU 
(vacant) 

H
ig

h 
Pl

ai
ns

 B
lv

d 

Gateway 
Commercial 

GC zone 

ATTACHMENT B

10

https://www.co.weld.co.us/maps/propertyportal/


1 of 2 

Land Planning    Landscape Architecture    Real Estate Feasibility    Development Consulting 

V: 303.893.4288   F: 303.893-6792      475 West 12th Avenue, Suite E, Denver, Colorado 80204      www.vogelassoc.com 

March 20, 2018 

Kim Meyer 

Director of Planning & Development 

Town of Johnstown 
450 S Parish Avenue 

Johnstown, CO 80534 

Dear Kim, 

On behalf of Gateway Owners, LLC, Vogel & Associates is pleased to submit the enclosed I-25 Gateway 

Center, Filing No. Four – PUD Amendment.  As discussed with staff, the intent is amend Area A to 

provide for both industrial and retail land uses. 

Over the past 20 years, 77% of the lots developed within the I-25 Gateway Center has included 
commercial/light industrial land uses.  One retail use consisting of a gas/convenience store has been 

located at the southeast corner of the project that is located adjacent to I-25 and the interchange.  
Given the limited access and visibility of the lots located on the western 2/3rds of Area A, retail users 

and development has not been proposed.  Destination retail users continue to locate within the 

successful commercial/retail development that has been occurring at the intersection of I-25 and State 
Hwy 34.  The market demand for office flex / light industrial lots continues to be more in demand than 

retail for the I-25 Gateway Center.   

To accommodate the demand for office flex/light industrial we are requesting to amend the PUD to 

permit light industrial within the western 2/3rd of the 6 northern lots within Block 3 located within Area 
A. This area would be categorized as Area C Land Use.  This land use would be consistent with the

existing development which has occurred on the north side of Gateway Circle.  The remainder of the 6
lots would remain within the Area A land use classification.  By keeping a portion of these 6 lots as

Area A would retain a Retail/Commercial edge along the west side of Gateway Drive were convenient
access and visibility is provided.  This has been illustrated on sheet 2 of the PUD Amendment Submittal

Package.

To further accommodate the demand for commercial/office flex/light industrial the Design Standards 

that appear on page 2 off the First PUD Amendment would be amended to include outdoor storage as 
a principal use when screened from the street with a building, opaque fencing or wall. 

Attached please find the first four items listed on the Processing Schedule Gateway District that apply 
to a PUD Amendment.  The remaining 5 items relate to the submittal of site plans for the individual 

lots within the I-25 Gateway Center, Filing No. Four – PUD. 

11

ATTACHMENT C



2 of 2 

Land Planning    Landscape Architecture    Real Estate Feasibility    Development Consulting 

V: 303.893.4288   F: 303.893-6792      475 West 12th Avenue, Suite E, Denver, Colorado 80204      www.vogelassoc.com 

We look forward to working with you as this PUD Amendment submittal moves through the Town’s 
submittal and approval process. 

Respectfully, 

Vogel & Associates, LLC 

Jeffrey Vogel, AICP 
Principal 

12



I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. FOUR-P.U.D AMENDMENT NO. TWO
OUTLINE DEVELOPMENT PLAN-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

475 W. 12th Avenue - Suite E

Denver, Colorado  80204-3688

 (303) 893-4288

JOB NO: 80-2867.017.00

PAGE    OF 2

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE

SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO,

CONTAINING 45.457 ACRES.

SAID TRACT ALSO BEING A REPLAT OF:

A) I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. ONE,

B) OUTLOT "B", I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. TWO, REPLAT "A",

C) OUTLOT "A", I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. FIVE,

D) LOT 2, BLOCK 2, LOTS 8 AND 9, I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. SIX.

1

A. STATEMENT OF INTENT

1. THE INTENT OF THIS AMENDED PUD IS TO CREATE ADDITIONAL OPPORTUNITIES FOR OFFICE FLEX AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AT I-25 GATEWAY CENTER.  BECAUSE OF THE

GATEWAY CENTER'S LOCATION, AT THE INTERSECTION OF INTERSTATE 25 AND WELD COUNTY ROAD 48 (AN EXTENSION OF HIGHWAY 60), IT IS A LOGICAL LOCATION FOR

HIGHWAY RETAIL OR HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES.  THE PUD/DISTRICT IS DIVIDED INTO THREE AREAS (A, B, & C) TO BETTER CONTROL COMPATIBILITY OF BUSINESSES AND

TO LOCATE OFFICES, OFFICE FLEX/CONTROLLED LIGHT INDUSTRIAL AND NON-RETAIL COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES IN AREAS THAT WILL NOT INTERFERE WITH THE RETAIL EDGE

ALONG WELD COUNTY ROAD 48 AND GATEWAY DRIVE TO GATEWAY CIRCLE.  RETAIL BUSINESSES WOULD BE PERMITTED IN ANY OF THE THREE AREAS, BUT AREA A ALONG WELD

COUNTY ROAD (WCR) WOULD BE CONSIDERED THE “RETAIL CORE”.

2. PHASING:

A. THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND ROADS ARE ALREADY CONSTRUCTED IN MOST OF THE AREA THAT IS SUBJECT TO THIS REQUEST.

B. APPLICANT (DEVELOPER) WILL BEGIN SELLING LOTS IMMEDIATELY. HOWEVER, MARKET STUDIES THAT HAVE BEEN CONDUCTED FOR GATEWAY CENTER INDICATE THAT THE SALE OF LOTS

WILL TAKE 8 TO 12 YEARS TO COMPLETE.

3. MAINTENANCE:

A. COMMON AREAS (INCLUDING LANDSCAPING WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY, OUT LOTS, LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS, ETC.) WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE APPLICANT (DEVELOPER) INITIALLY,

BUT WILL BE TURNED OVER TO THE OWNER'S ASSOCIATION AS IMPROVEMENTS ARE COMPLETED.

B. INDIVIDUAL LOTS WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE APPLICANT UNTIL THEY ARE SOLD. AFTER A LOT IS SOLD, THE MAINTENANCE OF THE LOT WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE NEW

OWNER OF THE LOT.

VICINITY MAP

B.PUD AMENDMENT 2

1.   THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THIS PUD OCCURRED IN 2019 AND INCREASED AREA C FOR MORE OPPORTUNITY FOR OFFICE FLEX/LIGHT INDUSTRIAL, AND ALLOWED OUTDOOR

STORAGE AS A PERMITTED USE ON CERTAIN LOTS, WHILE MAINTAINING THE RETAIL EDGE ALONG WCR 48 AND I-25. SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE DEVELOPMENT PLAN, FOR LOCATION

AND BOUNDARY OF EACH AREA.

C. PROJECT SUMMARY CHART

AREA LAND USE NO. OF LOTS ACRES

A RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL 4 4.71*

B
RETAIL, COMMERCIAL & LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

(LIMITED TO SELECTED OPERATIONS)
8 13.96

C
RETAIL, COMMERCIAL & LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

(WITH RESTRICTIONS)
7 16.96*

STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY 6.28

OUT LOTS (FOR LANDSCAPING & DETENTION) 5 3.73

TOTAL 45.46

D. STANDARDS FOR RETAIL, COMMERCIAL AND LIGHT INDUSTRIAL LAND USES

1. AREA A

A. PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT:

THE FOLLOWING USES SHALL BE PERMITTED IN THIS DISTRICT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE PLANNING STAFF OF THE BUILDING SITE AND OPERATIONAL PLANS AND SUBJECT TO APPROVAL

OF SUCH PLANS BY THE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL SECTIONS OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 16-145.  THESE USES ARE

PERMITTED BY RIGHT PROVIDED THAT THEY ARE CONDUCTED ENTIRELY WITHIN AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE AND THAT ALL DUST, FUMES, ODORS, SMOKE, NOISE, LIGHTS AND VIBRATION AND

CONFINED WITHIN THE LOT ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED.

1. RETAIL STORES:

a. FOOD STORES, (SUPERMARKET OR CONVENIENCE STORE TYPES);

b. GAS STATIONS (WITHOUT SERVICE BAYS);

c. DELICATESSEN;

d. BAKERY GOODS STORE;

e. LIQUOR STORE;

f. HARDWARE STORE;

g. DRUGSTORE.

2. RETAIL SALES:

a. RETAIL SALES CONDUCTED PRIMARILY INSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE;

b. RETAIL NURSERY OR GARDEN STORE WITH OUTDOOR STORAGE OR DISPLAY OF MERCHANDISE;

c. GASOLINE SERVICE STATION / CONVENIENCE STORE;

d. MOTOR VEHICLE REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE (E.G. JIFFY LUBE, BRAKES PLUS, ETC.);

e. COPY SHOPS, SIGN SHOPS (E.G. FASTSIGNS) AND PRINTING SERVICES.

3. CONSUMER SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS

a. BARBER AND BEAUTY SHOPS;

b. RESTAURANTS AND BARS;

c. SHOE REPAIR SHOP;

d. LAUNDROMAT AND COIN-OPERATED DRY-CLEANING ESTABLISHMENT;

e. FINE ART STUDIO;

f. FITNESS AND HEALTH CLUBS.

4. BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL OFFICES;

5. BANKS AND SAVINGS AND LOANS;

6. MEDICAL AND DENTAL CLINICS;

7. PUBLIC ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES AND SERVICE BUILDINGS;

8. PUBLIC UTILITY OFFICES AND INSTALLATIONS;

9. PUBLIC LIBRARY

10. COMMERCIAL LODGING (I.E. HOTEL, MOTEL);

11. THEATER;

12. MINOR REPAIR, RENTAL AND SERVICING ESTABLISHMENTS;

13. EQUIPMENT SALES AND RENTAL, NOT INCLUDING FARM IMPLEMENTS, MOBILE HOMES, LARGE CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES;

14. AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINES;

15. CATERING ESTABLISHMENTS;

16. DAY CARE CENTERS;

17. OTHER USES SIMILAR TO THOSE LISTED ABOVE OR COMBINING 2 OR MORE OF THE USES LISTED ABOVE.

B. PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES:

1. OFFICE, STORAGE, POWER SUPPLY AND OTHER SUCH USES NORMALLY AUXILIARY TO THE PRINCIPAL USE;

2. PARKING AND SERVICE AREAS;

3. ACCESSORY SIGNS;

4. RESIDENTIAL QUARTERS FOR GUARDS OR CARETAKERS;

5. ANY OTHER STRUCTURE OR USE CLEARLY INCIDENTAL TO AND COMMONLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE OPERATION OF A PRINCIPAL USE PERMITTED BY RIGHT.

2. AREA B

A. PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT:

THE FOLLOWING USES SHALL BE PERMITTED IN THIS DISTRICT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE PLANNING STAFF OF THE BUILDING SITE AND OPERATIONAL PLANS AND SUBJECT TO APPROVAL

OF SUCH PLANS BY THE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL SECTIONS OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 16-145.  THESE USES ARE

PERMITTED BY RIGHT PROVIDED THAT THEY ARE CONDUCTED ENTIRELY WITHIN AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE AND THAT ALL DUST, FUMES, ODORS, SMOKE, NOISE, LIGHTS AND VIBRATION ARE

CONFINED WITHIN THE LOT ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED.

1. ALL USES LISTED UNDER AREA “A”

2. EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES

a. TRADE OR VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS OR TRAINING CENTERS;

b. SPECIAL SCHOOLS SUCH AS MARTIAL ARTS, DANCE OR OTHER SUCH SKILL INSTRUCTION.

3. MANUFACTURING, ASSEMBLY, PROCESSING AND FABRICATION PLANTS;

4. GENERAL WAREHOUSING;

5. EXPERIMENTAL TESTING AND RESEARCH LABORATORIES;

6. PRINTING AND PUBLISHING HOUSES AND RELATED ACTIVITIES;

7. BUSINESS TO BUSINESS GOODS AND SERVICES

a. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES;

b. BUSINESS SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT UNITED TO, ADVERTISING, PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AND MAINTAINING, PERSONNEL SERVICES, COMPUTER SERVICES,

BOOKKEEPING AND MAILING SERVICES;

c. MEDICAL, DENTAL AND OPTICAL LABORATORIES AND RESEARCH FACILITIES;

8. GENERAL BUILDING CONTRACTORS OFFICES COMPLETELY INSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE;

9. DISTRIBUTION CENTERS;

10. PRIVATE CLUB OR LODGE;

11. BUS OR OTHER PUBLIC TRANSIT TERMINAL

12.  SPORTING FACILITIES SUCH AS INDOOR SOCCER FIELDS, BATTING CAGES, ETC.;

13. OTHER USES SIMILAR TO THOSE LISTED ABOVE OR COMBINING 2 OR MORE OF THE USES LISTED ABOVE.

B. PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES:

1. OFFICE, STORAGE, POWER SUPPLY AND OTHER SUCH USES NORMALLY AUXILIARY TO THE PRINCIPAL USE;

2. PARKING AND SERVICE AREAS;

3. ACCESSORY SIGNS;

4. RESIDENTIAL. QUARTERS FOR GUARDS OR CARETAKERS;

5. ANY OTHER STRUCTURE OR USE CLEARLY INCIDENTAL TO AND COMMONLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE OPERATION OF A PRINCIPAL USE PERMITTED BY RIGHT.

D. STANDARDS FOR RETAIL, COMMERCIAL AND LIGHT INDUSTRIAL LAND USES
3. AREA C

A. PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT:

THE FOLLOWING USES SHALL BE PERMITTED IN THIS DISTRICT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE PLANNING STAFF OF THE BUILDING SITE AND OPERATIONAL PLANS AND SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF SUCH PLANS

BY THE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL SECTIONS OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.  AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 16-145.  THESE USES ARE PERMITTED BY RIGHT PROVIDED

THAT THEY ARE CONDUCTED ENTIRELY WITHIN AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE AND THAT ALL DUST, FUMES, ODORS, SMOKE, NOISE, LIGHTS AND VIBRATION ARE CONFINED WITHIN THE LOT ON WHICH THE USE

IS LOCATED.

1. ALL USES LISTED IN AREAS "A" AND "B" ABOVE.

2. OTHER MANUFACTURING AND PROCESSING USES:

a. RESEARCH FACILITIES, TESTING LABORATORIES, OR ANY MANUFACTURING FABRICATION, ASSEMBLY, TREATMENT OR PRODUCTION OF PRODUCTS, PROVIDED, DUST, FUMES, ODOR, VAPOR, NOISE,

LIGHT AND VIBRATION ARE CONFINED TO THE LOT IN WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED.  ALL ACTIVITY MUST MEET APPLICABLE STATE AND FEDERAL POLLUTION LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS.

b. ESSENTIAL MUNICIPAL, AND PUBLIC UTILITY USES, FACILITIES, SERVICES AND STRUCTURES; PROVIDED OFFICES, REPAIR, STORAGE AND PRODUCTION FACILITIES ARE NOT INCLUDED.

c. ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION AND WATER STORAGE TANKS. (IF REQUIRED FOR SERVICE TO DEVELOPMENT)

3. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS TO BUSINESS GOODS AND SERVICES

a. SPECIAL TRADE CONTRACTORS SHOPS INCLUDING LIMITED FABRICATION, COMPLETELY INSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE.

b. MACHINE SHOPS, TOOL AND DIE EQUIPMENT AND ENGINE REPAIR WITH ALL ACTIVITY INSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE.

c. PUBLISHING, BINDING AND ENGRAVING ESTABLISHMENTS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE PRINTING SERVICES AND TYPESETTING.

d. NEWSPAPER PRINTING, PUBLISHING, AND PRODUCTION FACILITIES.

e. COMMERCIAL LAUNDRIES, LINEN SUPPLY SERVICES, DRY CLEANING PLANTS.

f. WHOLESALE TRADE CONDUCTED COMPLETELY INSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE.

4. STORAGE, PARKING AND TRANSPORTATION USES.

a. OUTDOOR STORAGE IS PERMITTED ON LOTS IN THE GATEWAY CENTER FILING 4, BLOCK 3 ONLY, INCLUDING LOTS: 1, 2, 4, 7 AND 8, AS A PRIMARY USE WHEN FULLY SCREENED FROM VIEW

OF STREETS AND NEARBY PROPERTIES, VIA A FUNCTIONAL COMBINATION OF STRUCTURES, LANDSCAPING, BERMING AND /OR SOLID FENCING OR WALLS THAT INCORPORATE

PROJECTIONS/RECESSES OF 4-5 FEET OR MORE AT LEAST EVERY 100 FEET.

5. WAREHOUSES AND STORAGE PLANTS FOR BUSINESS AND CONSUMER GOODS COMPLETELY WITHIN AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE.

6. EQUIPMENT SALES AND RENTAL, INCLUDING CARS, TRUCKS, RECREATIONAL VEHICLES AND SMALL AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT, BUT NOT INCLUDING MOBILE HOMES OR LARGE CONSTRUCTION

EQUIPMENT.

7. OTHER USES SIMILAR TO THOSE LISTED ABOVE OR COMBINING 2 OR MORE OF THE USES LISTED ABOVE.

B. PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES:

1. OFFICE STORAGE, POWER SUPPLY AND OTHER SUCH NORMALLY AUXILIARY TO THE PRINCIPAL USE;

2. PARKING AND SERVICE AREAS;

3. ACCESSORY SIGNS;

4. RESIDENTIAL QUARTERS FOR GUARDS OR CARETAKERS; AND

5. ANY OTHER STRUCTURE OR USE CLEARLY INCIDENTAL TO AND COMMONLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE OPERATION OF A PRINCIPAL USE PERMITTED BY RIGHT.

E. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

1. LOT SIZE:  THERE IS NOT A MINIMUM LOT SIZE

2. BUILDING SETBACKS:

A. THE MINIMUM SETBACK FROM THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR INTERSTATE 25 IS SIXTY-FIVE (65) FEET FOR STRUCTURES AND THIRTY-FIVE (35) FEET FOR PARKING LOTS.

B. THE MINIMUM SETBACK FROM WELD COUNTY ROAD 48 BETWEEN INTERSTATE 25 AND GATEWAY DRIVE IS THIRTY (30) FEET.

C. THE MINIMUM SETBACK FROM ALL OTHER RIGHTS-OF-WAYS IS TWENTY (20) FEET FOR STRUCTURES AND TEN (10) FEET FOR PARKING LOTS.

D. THE MINIMUM SETBACK FROM ALL OTHER PROPERTY LINES IS TEN (10) FEET FOR STRUCTURES AND PARKING LOTS.

3. PARKING STANDARDS

A. REQUIRED OFF-STREET PARKING

B. PARKING STALL SIZE:  AN INDIVIDUAL PARKING SPACE SHALL BE AT LEAST NINE (9) FEET WIDE BY EIGHTEEN (18) FEET LONG, AND IF COVERED SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM HEIGHT CLEARANCE OF SEVEN (7)

FEET.

USE PARKING

PUBLIC ASSEMBLY FACILITY PROVIDED FOR SEATED

AUDIENCES (E.G. CHURCHES, THEATERS,

AUDITORIUMS, ETC.)
1 SPACE FOR EVERY 3 SEATS

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

2 SPACES FOR EVERY CLASSROOM

(IF THE SCHOOL INCLUDES AN AUDITORIUM, THE AUDITORIUM

REQUIREMENT SHALL GOVERN IF IT IS GREATER)

JUNIOR AND SENIOR HIGH SCHOOLS
AUDITORIUM REQUIREMENT OF 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 5 STUDENTS

OF MAXIMUM CAPACITY

HOSPITALS 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 2 BEDS

CLINICS
5 SPACES PER MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PRACTITIONERS ON SITE AT

ANY ONE TIME

VETERINARIAN CLINICS/HOSPITALS
3 SPACES PER MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PRACTITIONERS ON SITE AT

ANY ONE TIME

INDUSTRIAL USES 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 2 EMPLOYEES

RETAIL STORES 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 200 SQ. FT. OF G.L.A.

CUSTOMER SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 200 SQ. FT. OF G.L.A.

RESTAURANT OR BAR 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 100 SQ. FT. OF G.L.A.

PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER 1 SPACE FOR EVERY 200 SQ. FT. OF G.L.A.

F. AUXILIARY USE STANDARDS

1. LIMITATION ON EXTERNAL EFFECTS OF USES.

A. NO USE OR ACTIVITY SHALL BE PERMITTED TO PRODUCE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS OR NOXIOUS INFLUENCES, SUCH AS NOISE, VIBRATION, HEAT, GLARE. RADIATION, FUMES, SMOKE OR OTHER POLLUTANT

TO A DEGREE DETRIMENTAL TO EXISTING OR PROSPECTIVE ADJACENT DISTRICTS.

B. ALL FUEL. RAW MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS STORED OUTDOORS SHALL BE ENCLOSED BY A SOLID FENCE OR WALL ADEQUATE TO CONCEAL SUCH FUEL RAW MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS FROM ADJACENT

PROPERTIES.

G. SIGN GUIDELINES

1. GENERAL

A. THE LOCATION AND DESIGN OF ALL SIGNS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED BY THIS SECTION SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE TOWN STAFF PRIOR TO ERECTION OF THE SIGN.

B. SIGN AREA WILL BE BASED ON THE SMALLEST POSSIBLE AREA OF ANY RECTILINEAR GEOMETRIC SHAPE THAT UTILIZES 8 OR FEWER STRAIGHT LINES THAT JOIN EACH OTHER AT RIGHT ANGLES AND THAT ENCLOSES THE EXTREME

LIMITS OF THE LETTERS, LOGOS, GRAPHIC SYMBOLS AND THE SIGN BACKING (IF BACKING IS PRESENT).

C. ALL SIGNS RELATED TO A MULTI-USE STRUCTURE SHALL PROVIDE A CONTINUITY OF DESIGN TO THE AGGREGATE, SHALL BE PROPORTIONED TO THE BUILDING SPACE ALLOTTED, AND SHALL BE COMPATIBLE IN DESIGN WITH EACH

OTHER.  SUCH CONTINUITY AND PROPORTION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY THE TOWN STAFF.

D. THE OWNER OR THE DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT OF THE MULTI-USE STRUCTURE SHALL PROVIDE A PLAN WHICH IDENTIFIES THE GENERAL SIGN THEME FOR THE STRUCTURE AND SHALL MAKE THIS INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO ALL TENANTS IN

THE STRUCTURE.

E. THE TOWN STAFF MAY ALLOW ADDITIONAL BUSINESS OR COMPLEX IDENTIFICATION SIGNS WHEN THERE ARE TWO (2) SEPARATE BUILDING FRONTS HAVING INDEPENDENT ENTRANCES NOT VISIBLE FROM ONE (1) LOCATION.  NO MORE THAN

TWENTY (20) SQUARE FEET OF SIGNAGE PER BUSINESS MAY BE VISIBLE ON ANY BUILDING FROM ANY ONE (1) LOCATION.  THIS PROVISION APPLIES TO ALL SIGNS UNLESS SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED ELSEWHERE IN THIS CHAPTER.

F. COMBINATION OF SIGNS.  EACH BUSINESS ACTIVITY SHALL BE AUTHORIZED TO UTILIZE WITHIN THE LIMITS ESTABLISHED BY THIS CHAPTER, A COMBINATION OF TWO (2) OF THE FOLLOWING: (A) ONE (1) WALL SIGN; (B) ONE (1) CANOPY SIGN;

(C) ONE (1) FREESTANDING SIGN; (D) ONE (1) PROJECTING SIGN; AND ONE (1) POLE SIGN.  A BUSINESS ACTIVITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN TWO (2) SIGNS HEREIN DEFINED, AND A MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AREA OF EACH SIGN SHALL

NOT EXCEED TWO HUNDRED (200) SQUARE FEET.

G. HANGING PANELS. FREESTANDING SIGNS AND PROJECTING SIGNS WITH THE EXCEPTION OF MULTIUSE SIGNS MAY INCLUDE A MAXIMUM OF TWO (2) ADDITIONAL HANGING PANELS PER FREESTANDING OR PROJECTING SIGN.  ALL HANGING

PANELS SUSPENDED FROM PROJECTING SIGNS SHALL CLEAR GRADE BY A MINIMUM OF EIGHT (8) FEET.  THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AREA OF THE FREESTANDING SIGN TOGETHER WITH THE HANGING PANELS SHALL NOT EXCEED TWO HUNDRED

(200) SQUARE FEET.  THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE AREA OF THE PROJECTING SIGN, TOGETHER WITH THE HANGING PANELS, SHALL NOT EXCEED ONE HUNDRED (100) SQUARE FEET IN AREA.

H. THE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION AND/OR DEVELOPER OF THE PUD SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND, WHEN NECESSARY, THE REPLACEMENT OF ALL SIGNS ERECTED FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE ENTIRE DEVELOPMENT.

THE OWNER(S) AND/OR DEVELOPER(S) SHALL MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY SIGNS LOCATED AT MAJOR ENTRANCES UNTIL NINETY PERCENT (90%) OF THE CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY FOR THE DEVELOPMENT HAVE BEEN ISSUED.  AT WHICH TIME

THE TOWN STAFF MAY REQUIRE REMOVAL.  THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS SUBSECTION SHALL APPLY TO ALL SUCCESSOR DEVELOPERS. ALL SIGNS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR THE BENEFIT OF ONLY THE PROPERTY OWNER SHALL BE MAINTAINED

BY THE PROPERTY OWNER.

I. SIGNS WITH REVOLVING BEACONS, FLASHING LIGHTS, INTERMITTENT LIGHTING EFFECTS, OR ELECTRONIC LETTERING THAT CHANGES (I.E. READER BOARDS) WILL NOT BE ALLOWED.

2. TEMPORARY SIGNS

A. TWO (2) SIGNS ALLOWED PER LOT. ONE OF THE TWO (2) SIGNS MAY BE PLACED IN A LOCATION NOT ON THE SITE.

B. MAXIMUM SIZE: ONE (1) SIGN SHALL BE A MAXIMUM OF EIGHT (8) SQUARE FEET. ONE SIGN SHALL BE A MAXIMUM OF THIRTY-TWO (32) SQUARE FEET.

3. PERMANENT SIGNS

A. COMPLEX IDENTIFICATION SIGNS.  EACH MULTI-USE STRUCTURE SHALL BE PERMITTED ONE (1) MULTI-TENANT IDENTIFICATION SIGN CONTAINING ONLY THE NAME OF THE STRUCTURE AND/OR INCLUDING THE NAMES OF THE INDIVIDUAL

BUSINESSES THEREIN OR A DESCRIPTION OF THE TYPES OF BUSINESSES THEREIN.  COMPLEX IDENTIFICATION SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED FIFTY (50) SQUARE FEET IN AREAS "A” AND “B” AND ONE HUNDRED (100) SQUARE FEET IN AREA “C” AND

MAY BE FREESTANDING OR WALL MOUNTED.

B. INDIVIDUAL BUSINESS SIGNS.  BUSINESSES OR ACTIVITIES IN MULTI-USE STRUCTURES SHALL ALSO BE ALLOWED ONE (1) WALL OR CANOPY SIGN OR GROUND SIGN FOR EACH ACTIVITY OR BUSINESS OWNING OR LEASING SPACE

WITHIN THE MULTIUSE STRUCTURE.  WALL SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED ON THE GROUND FLOOR.  THE TOTAL SIGN AREA FOR ALL SUCH SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED TWENTY (20) SQUARE FEET PER BUSINESS.

4. FREESTANDING SIGNS SITE REQUIREMENTS.

A. THE ACTIVITY OR BUSINESS SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE BY AUTOMOBILE, AND SHALL HAVE OFF-STREET PARKING ON PREMISES.

B. ALL SIGNS, EXCEPT MULTI-TENANT SIGNS AND POLE SIGNS, SHALL BE LOCATED ON THE LOT OF THE ADVERTISED USE.

C. ALL SIGNS SHALL BE SET BACK FROM PROPERTY LINE A DISTANCE EQUAL TO THEIR HEIGHT, EXCEPT THAT A GROUND SIGN UP TO SIX (6) FEET IN HEIGHT SHALL BE ALLOWED TO BE PLACED ONE (1) FOOT FROM THE PROPERTY LINE.

D. POLE SIGN REQUIREMENTS:

1. SITE:  A MAXIMUM OF TWO (2) POLE SIGNS WILL BE ALLOWED WITHIN GATEWAY CENTER, ONLY WITHIN LOTS ABUTTING THE RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF WCR 48 OR INTERSTATE 25.

2. SETBACK:

a. MINIMUM SETBACK FROM ANY STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY WILL BE EQUAL TO THE HEIGHT OF THE SIGN.

b. MINIMUM SETBACK FROM PROPERTY LINES WILL BE 10 FEET.

3. HEIGHT:  MAXIMUM HEIGHT ALLOWED WILL BE 45 FEET, AS MEASURED FROM THE ELEVATION OF THE NEAREST POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF W.C.R. 48 TO THE ELEVATION AT THE TOP OF THE SIGN.

4. SIGN AREA:  MAXIMUM DISPLAY AREA ALLOWED WILL BE 400 SQUARE FEET PER SIDE.

5. MAINTENANCE:  POLE SIGNS WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE PROPERTY OWNER'S ASSOCIATION OR BY THE OWNER OF THE SIGN.

E. A SINGLE ACTIVITY OR BUSINESS NOT IN A MULTI-USE STRUCTURE SHALL BE PERMITTED NO MORE THAN TWO (2) SIGNS.  THESE MAY INCLUDE NOT MORE THAN ONE (1) FREESTANDING SIGN, ONE (1) POLE SIGN OR ONE (1) WALL SIGN.  THESE

SIGNS SHALL MEET THE SITE REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED BY THIS SUBSECTION.

F. ALL NEW GROUND SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED IN AN APPROPRIATELY LANDSCAPED AREA AND SHALL NOT EXCEED TWELVE (12) FEET IN HEIGHT OR EXCEED 48 SQUARE FEET IN AREA PER SIDE.  NO FREESTANDING SIGN SHALL BE PLACED IN A

LOCATION THAT WILL OBSTRUCT EXISTING OR PROPOSED LEGAL CONFORMING SIGNS.

G. OTHER SIGNAGE PLANS:  AFTER RECEIVING THE APPROVAL OF THE GATEWAY CENTER ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE, MAY BE SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL BY THE TOWN.

H. PROHIBITED SIGNS. THE FOLLOWING TYPES OF SIGNS SHALL BE PROHIBITED: BILLBOARDS, FLASHING/MOVING SIGNS, ELECTRONIC MESSAGING SIGNS, ANIMATED SIGNS, UNSAFE SIGNS, ROOF SIGNS, SIGNS WHICH CAUSE RADIO

OR TELEVISION INTERFERENCE AND SIGNS IN THE RESTRICTED SIGHT TRIANGLE AT CORNERS.

H. LANDSCAPE GUIDELINES

1. GENERAL

A. SITE DEVELOPMENT WILL COMPLY WITH TOWN'S CURRENT LANDSCAPE GUIDELINES, WITH THE EXCEPTIONS/MODIFICATIONS LISTED BELOW.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES FOR INSTALLATION & MAINTENANCE:

1. LANDSCAPING WITHIN LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS AND SITES OWNED BY THE OWNERS' ASSOCIATION (E.G. DETENTION AREA) WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNERS' ASSOCIATION.

2. LANDSCAPING OUTSIDE OF LANDSCAPE EASEMENTS AND/OR WITHIN STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY (EXCLUDING INTERSTATE 25 RIGHT-OF-WAY) WILL BE PLANTED AND MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER OF THE ADJACENT SITE.

2. EXCEPTIONS/MODIFICATIONS

A. LANDSCAPE AREA:  FOR DEVELOPED SITES OVER 1.0 ACRES IN SIZE, FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) OF THE TOTAL LAND AREA OF THE SITE SHALL BE LANDSCAPE OPEN SPACE.  THE AREA WILL BE LANDSCAPED AT A RATIO OF AT LEAST ONE (1) TREE AND

FIVE (5) SHRUBS PER 1000 SQUARE FEET.

B. SITES WITH BUILDINGS OF 25,000 SQUARE FEET OR GREATER AREA WILL PROVIDE A BUFFER YARD OF AT LEAST FIFTEEN (15) FEET IN WIDTH.

C. NATIVE GRASSES AND WILDFLOWER ARE AN ACCEPTABLE GROUNDCOVER IN AREAS MORE THAN 100 FEET FROM RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF INTERIOR STREETS.

I. ARCHITECTURE GUIDELINES

1. REQUIRED ARCHITECTURAL SUBMISSION: PRIOR TO APPLYING FOR A BUILDING PERMIT, THE PROPERTY OWNER SHALL BE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT ARCHITECTURAL PLANS TO THE TOWN AND RECEIVE APPROVAL FROM THE TOWN PLANNER.  THESE

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS SHALL INCLUDE SITE PLAN AND ELEVATIONS.  ATTACHED TO THESE PLANS SHALL BE A LETTER OF APPROVAL FROM THE ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE FOR GATEWAY CENTER.

2. ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES

A. GENERAL:  THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN BY THE PLANNING STAFF SHALL BE BASED ON THE GUIDELINES PRESCRIBED IN THIS SECTION.

B. BUILDING WALLS:

1. THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS MAY BE USED ON THE EXTERIOR OF THE BUILDING:

a. BRICK

b. CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT (I.E. BLOCK)

c. CONCRETE PANELS

d. STONE

e. STUCCO

f. WOOD

g. METAL, LIMITED TO ACCENT AND STRUCTURAL MEMBERS

h. METAL SIDING. LIMITED TO SIDES OF BUILDING NOT ADJACENT TO A PUBLIC STREET.

2. THE FOLLOWING COLORS ARE ACCEPTABLE:

a. ALL EARTH-TONE COLORS

b. ANY OTHER COLOR MAY BE USED IN A LIMITED AMOUNT AS AN ACCENT COLOR.

C. ROOF OF BUILDINGS:

1. PITCHED ROOFS SHALL BE METAL STANDING SEAM TYPE.

2. FLAT ROOFS WILL BE ALLOWED WHEN THE VIEW OF THE ROOF LINE FROM ADJACENT STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY IS SCREENED BY PARAPET WALLS WITH ARCHITECTURAL VARIATIONS IN SHAPE AND HEIGHT.

3. THE COLOR OF ALL PITCHED ROOFS SHALL BE DARK GREEN. A MINIMUM OF 66% OF THE PARAPET WALLS AROUND A BUILDING SHALL BE DARK GREEN

D. MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF BUILDINGS SHALL BE THIRTY-FIVE (35) FEET.  HEIGHT SHALL BE MEASURED FROM PROPOSED ELEVATION AT BUILDING WALL TO HIGHEST POINT ON BUILDING.

E. FACADES SHALL BE DELINEATED INTO AREAS NO GREATER THAN SEVENTY-FIVE (75) FEET IN HORIZONTAL LENGTH BY USE OF ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES (I.E. COLUMNS, PILASTERS, CORNICES, CHANGES IN MATERIALS, RECESSED AREAS,

PROTRUDING ELEMENTS, ETC.).  ENTRANCES SHALL BE ACCENTED WITH ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES SUCH AS THOSE LISTED PREVIOUSLY.  OWNERS WILL BE ENCOURAGED TO INCORPORATE LOGS OR WOODEN BEAMS INTO THE ARCHITECTURAL

FEATURES AT EACH BUILDING'S MAIN ENTRANCE

F. SERVICE AREAS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING, SHALL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW FROM ADJACENT STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS.

1. TRASH STORAGE/PICKUP

2. LOADING DOCKS

J. UNIFYING DESIGN ELEMENTS

THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS WILL CREATE A UNIFIED APPEARANCE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT.

1. LANDSCAPING

A. ENTRY LANDSCAPING:  EACH OF THE TWO (2) ENTRANCES FROM WELD COUNTY ROAD 48 WILL HAVE MEDIANS.  THESE MEDIANS WILL BE LANDSCAPED TO CREATE A SIMILAR APPEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE

ACCOMPLISHED BY USING THE SAME SPECIES, SIZE AND PROPORTIONS (RELATED TO QUANTITY) OF PLANT MATERIALS AND BY USING THE SAME MULCH MATERIALS.

B. STREETSCAPING:  PER THE TYPICAL SITE PLAN DRAWINGS, THE OWNER OF EACH SITE IS REQUIRED TO PLANT TREES ALONG ALL STREET FRONTAGES AT A MINIMUM OF FIFTY (50) FEET ON CENTER.  THE

SPECIES OF TREES TO BE USED ON EACH OF THE DIFFERENT STREETS IS ALSO IDENTIFIED.

C. ALONG INTERSTATE 25:  BERMS WITH LANDSCAPING INCORPORATING THE SAME SPECIES, SIZES AND PLACEMENT OF PLANT MATERIALS ARE EXISTING ALONG THE ENTIRE DEVELOPMENT FRONTAGE ADJACENT

TO THE INTERSTATE.

D. SITE LANDSCAPING:  PER THE TYPICAL SITE PLAN DRAWINGS, THE LANDSCAPE TREATMENT OF EACH BUILDING INDICATES THE USE OF TURF TYPE GRASSES IN FRONT OF THE BUILDING ON THE PROPERTY.  IN

ADDITION, VIEWS OF THE MAJORITY OF EACH PARKING LOT MUST BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

2. SIGNAGE

A. TYPES OF SIGNS:  THE FOLLOWING FOUR TYPES OF SIGNS ARE ALLOWED:

1. PYLON SIGN

2. LARGE MONUMENT SIGN (PROPOSED ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 25)

3. MULTI-TENANT SIGN

4. SINGLE TENANT SIGN

B. DESIGN

1. FORM:  IN CONCEPT, EACH TYPE OF SIGN WILL CONSIST OF A PAIR OF MASONRY COLUMNS RESTING ON A MASONRY BASE.  BETWEEN THE MASONRY COLUMNS, THERE SHALL BE A PANEL ON WHICH SIGNAGE

WILL BE DISPLAYED

2. MATERIALS:  EACH SIGN WILL USE THE SAME MATERIALS IN THE SAME COLORS.  THE EXACT MATERIALS AND COLORS WILL BE DETERMINED WHEN THE FIRST SIGN IS CONSTRUCTED.  (SEE CONCEPTUAL

SIGNAGE DRAWINGS FOR A REPRESENTATION OF A POSSIBLE CHOICE OF MATERIALS AND COLORS REPEATED IN EACH SIGN TYPE.)

3. ARCHITECTURE

A. FRONT FACADE:  PER THE TYPICAL FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATIONS, FACADES SHALL INCORPORATE MASONRY MATERIALS.  SITE OWNERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO UTILIZE THE MATERIALS AND COLORS USED IN THE

SIGN.  OWNERS WILL ALSO BE ENCOURAGED TO INCORPORATE LOG OR WOODEN BEANS INTO THE ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT OF EACH BUILDING'S MAIN ENTRANCE.

B. ROOF MATERIAL AND COLOR:  ALL PITCHED ROOFS SHALL BE METAL STANDING-SEAM TYPE AND SHALL BE DARK GREEN IN COLOR.

K. MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS

1. SHOULD THERE BE A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE STANDARDS LISTED IN THIS DOCUMENT AND THOSE LISTED IN CHAPTER 16, ZONING OR CHAPTER 17, SUBDIVISIONS, THE

STANDARDS USED IN THIS DOCUMENT WILL RULE.

2. THE INTENT OF THE ABOVE GUIDELINES (IN SECTIONS D THROUGH H) IS TO ESTABLISH A COHESIVE, CONSISTENT AND ATTRACTIVE APPEARANCE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT.

THE DEVELOPER AND THE OWNERS OF EACH SITE ARE RESPONSIBLE TO DESIGN THE PUD BASED UPON CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED. THESE

GUIDELINES SHALL BE INTERPRETED BY THE TOWN PLANNER IN A MANNER THAT ALLOWS FOR CHANGE, VARIETY, CREATIVITY. ECONOMICS, ENERGY REQUIREMENTS,

MARKETING STRATEGIES, SITE CONDITIONS AND OTHER VARIABLES TO BE ACCOMMODATED. IF ANY OF THE ABOVE GUIDELINES ARE INAPPROPRIATE AS SUGGESTED BY THE

APPLICANT. THEN THE TOWN PLANNER MAY DETERMINE THEM TO BE NOT APPLICABLE (N/A). FOR VERY SMALL PROJECTS, THE TOWN PLANNER MAY WAIVE SOME OR ALL OF

THE GUIDELINES.

DE FRANCE
RESERVOIR

JOHNSTOWN
RESERVOIR

IN
T

E
R

ST
A

T
E
 2

5

C
O

. 
R

D
. 
7

C
O

. 
R

D
. 
5

CO. RD. 48

CO. RD. 46

HIGHWAY 56

CO. 60

SITE





W
W

W
W

W
W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

W
F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

FOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFO

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

F
O

FOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFOFO

W

NON-TANGENT

22'

OFFICE

FLEX

10,000 SF

OFFICE

FLEX

10,000 SF

OFFICE

FLEX

12,500 SF

D

E

F
G
a
t
ew

a
y
 D

r
iv

e

B

C

OFFICE

FLEX

10,000 SF

A

RETAIL/

FLEX

7,000 SF

Gateway circle

OUTDOOR

STORAGE

37,927 SF

RETAIL

4,000 SF

24.0'

C
E
N

T
E
R
 C

O
U
R
T

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

V
IEW

 R
O

A
D

B
A

S
H

E
R

D
R

I
V

E

I-25 GATEWAY CENTER
Conceptual Site Plan - for Illustrative Purposes Only

h
:\

v
o
g
e
l\
g
a
te

w
a
y
 c

e
n
te

r 
i-
2
5
\c

a
d
\d

w
g
\i
-2

5
 g

a
te

w
a
y
-s

it
e
 p

la
n
 2

0
1
9
.0

5
.0

8
.d

w
g

0

SCALE: 1"=30'

3
0

6
0

May 9, 2019

1
5

1
2
0

Land Planning    Landscape Architecture    Development Consulting
475 W. 12th Avenue - Suite E - Denver, Colorado  80204-3688 - (303) 893-4288

TURF

ORNAMENTAL TREE

EVERGREEN TREE

LEGEND

EVERGREEN GROUNDCOVER

DECIDUOUS TREE

SHRUB

NATIVE GRASS AND WILDFLOWER MIX

ROCK MULCH

ORNAMENTAL GRASS



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance 2019-163 



.TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-163 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING I-25 GATEWAY CENTER FILING NO. 4 PUD 

AMENDMENT NO. 2, AMENDING THE OUTLINE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

FOR PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 

3, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN, TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF 

COLORADO  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule 

municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the 

Town’s Home Rule Charter; and  

 

WHEREAS, I-25 Gateway Center, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 

(“Applicant”), submitted an application to amend the outline development plan for Gateway 

Center Filing No. 4 to modify the land use map to expand “Area C” by 4.46 acres, with a 

corresponding reduction to “Area A,” allowing retail, commercial and light industrial uses in 

Area C, and revise the design standards to allow screened outdoor storage (“Application”); and  

 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 

hearing and recommended approval of the Application subject to modifications to the text of the 

design standards, which conditions have been satisfied; and 

 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2019, the Town Council conducted a public hearing to consider 

the Application; and 

 

WHEREAS, based upon the evidence presented at the public hearing and the 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Town Council finds that the 

proposed amendments to the outline development plan for the I-25 Gateway Center, Filing No. 

4, are appropriate and in the best interests of the Town. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Approval of Amended Outline Development Plan.  The I-25 Gateway Center, 

Filing No. Four-P.U.D. Amendment No. Two, Outline Development Plan-Final Development 

Plan, related to property located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 4 North, Range 

68 West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Town of Johnstown, County of Weld, State of Colorado, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A, is hereby approved.   

 

Section 2.  Publication; Effective Date; Recording.  This Ordinance, after its passage on 

final reading, shall be numbered, recorded, published and posted as required by the Town 

Charter and the adoption, posting and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the 



Mayor and the Town Clerk and by the Certificate of Publication.  This Ordinance shall become 

effective upon final passage as provided by the Home Rule Charter of the Town of Johnstown, 

Colorado.  Copies of the entire Ordinance are available at the office of the Town Clerk.  Upon its 

effective date, the Town Clerk is hereby directed to record the I-25 Gateway Center, Filing No. 

Four-P.U.D. Amendment No. Two, Outline Development Plan-Final Development Plan, as 

depicted on Exhibit A, with the Office of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder. 

 

  

INTRODUCED, AND APPROVED on first reading by the Town Council of the Town 

of Johnstown, Colorado, this _____ day of __________________, 2019. 

 

       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

ATTEST: 
 

By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 

      Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

 

 

 PASSED UPON FINAL APPROVAL AND ADOPTED on second reading by the 

Town Council of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, this _____ day of __________________, 

2019. 

 

       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

ATTEST: 
 

By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 

     Diana Seele, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

 



 
AGENDA ITEM 10C 
 
 
 
 
                   Easement Agreement 
                  (Return Flow Pipeline) 
 
 Assignment from W.R. Investment, LLC 

to the Town of Johnstown 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA DATE: July 1, 2019, 2019 
 
ITEM NUMBER:  10C 
 
SUBJECT:  (1) Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) among the Town of Johnstown, Thompson 
Crossing Metropolitan District No. 3 and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. and (2) Assignment from 
W.R. Investment, LLC to the Town of Johnstown. 
 
ACTION PROPOSED:  Approve Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) and Assignment  
 
PRESENTED BY:  Town Attorney, Avi Rocklin  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  For consideration are two items that relate to transfer of the 
“Augmentation Plan” and related requirements with respect to the Hillsborough Ditch water rights 
dedicated from W.R. Investment, LLC (“WRI”) to the Town of Johnstown (“Town”) (“Water Rights”): 
(1) an Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) among the Town, Thompson Crossing Metropolitan 
District No. 3 (“District”) and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. (“Clayton”) (“Easement Agreement”); 
and (2) an Assignment from WRI to the Town.  To effectuate the transfer of the Augmentation Plan, there 
are two additional documents that are not included for consideration because they do not require Town 
execution, but are nevertheless a part of the transaction: a Quit Claim Deed from WRI, the District and 
Clayton to the Town and a Quit Claim Deed from WRI to the District and Clayton (collectively, “Quit 
Claim Deeds”). 
 
The background is as follows.  On January 4, 2006, the Town and WRI executed a Water and Sewer 
Service Agreement and, pursuant to the terms thereof, WRI dedicated the Water Rights to the Town.  
WRI thereafter commenced a water court case to change the Water Rights to municipal and other 
purposes and, on January 16, 2017, obtained a final decree (“Decree”) changing the use of the Water 
Rights and creating rights and obligations to operate and manage a plan for augmentation including, 
without limitation, appropriative rights of exchange and the Wiens Ranch Return Flow Water Right as 
described in the Decree (collectively the “Augmentation Plan”).   
 
On May 7, 2018, the Town and WRI entered into an agreement (“Water Agreement”), creating a water 
bank for WRI’s benefit and contemplating that the Town or the District would operate and manage the 
Augmentation Plan.  With the Town’s consent, WRI thereafter transferred the water bank to Clayton.  
Pursuant to the assignment, WRI agreed (i) to assign to the Town the rights and obligations to operate and 
manage the Augmentation Plan and (ii) to dedicate the return flow pipeline, as defined in the Water 
Agreement, and certain appurtenant infrastructure and measuring devices necessary to operate and 
manage the Augmentation Plan to the Town.   
 
The Easement Agreement, Assignment and Quit Claim Deeds seek to accomplish the foregoing.  While 
the Town will operate and manage the Augmentation Plan, the District will operate and maintain the 
infrastructure system built for the purposes of non-potable irrigation in the Thompson River Ranch 
development, including the associated irrigation ponds (“Irrigation Ponds”) (collectively, “Non-Potable 
Irrigation System”).   
 
The components of the Augmentation Plan obligations and the Non-Potable Irrigation System overlap, 
requiring delineation and a more complete understanding of who is operating, maintaining and managing 
each part.  The entire infrastructure system is described as follows: 

 



a. A “Headgate” in the Hillsborough Ditch diverts the Water Rights into a pipeline (the “Primary 
Delivery Pipeline”) that connects to a Parshall flume and data logger (collectively, the “Measuring 
Devices”).   
 

b. The Primary Delivery Pipeline delivers the Water Rights from the Measuring Devices and out of the 
Hillsborough Ditch to a pump station (the “Transfer Pump Station”). 
 

c. At the Transfer Pump Station, an amount of water needed to fill the Irrigation Ponds is sent through a 
totalizing flow meter (“Totalizing Flow Meter”) to the Irrigation Ponds by operation of a pressure 
transducer connected to the ponds (“Pressure Transducer”) via an irrigation pipeline (“Irrigation 
Pipeline”). 
 

d. The Water Rights enter the Transfer Pump Station from the Primary Delivery Pipeline that is over 
and above the amount of water that is pumped to the Irrigation Ponds as determined by the Pressure 
Transducer, enter the Return Flow Pipeline and are delivered to the Big Thompson River to meet 
obligations related to the Augmentation Plan and/or to deliver water to the Town.       

 
For purposes of the Easement Agreement, the infrastructure that is being dedicated to the Town to operate 
and manage the Augmentation Plan are referred to as the “Dedicated Infrastructure” and consist of the 
Headgate, the Primary Delivery Pipeline, the Measuring Devices and the Return Flow Pipeline.   The 
infrastructure that is being dedicated to, or is otherwise owned by, the District to operate and maintain the 
Non-Potable Irrigation System are referred to as the “District’s Infrastructure” and consist of the Transfer 
Pump Station, the Totalizing Flow Meter, the Irrigation Pipeline, the Irrigation Ponds and any other part 
of the Non-Potable Irrigation System.   
 
The Easement Agreement allows the Town to access the District’s property to operate and manage the 
Dedicated Infrastructure.  To ensure that the Town is able to properly operate and manage the 
Augmentation Plan, the Easement Agreement requires the District to: (i) provide an accurate water 
accounting and related information to the Town and (ii) properly operate and manage the District’s 
Infrastructure.     
 
The Town’s water attorney and water engineer reviewed and approved of the forms of documents.  The 
Town’s public works director reviewed and approved of the scope of the easement.  Town staff conferred 
with Todd Williams, who has been managing the Augmentation Plan, to learn how to manage the plan 
going forward.  Town Staff’s understanding is that Mr. Williams will be available on a consulting basis if 
needed. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
LEGAL ADVICE:  The Town Attorney along with counsel for WRI, the District and Clayton drafted the 
Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) and the Assignment.     
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL ADVICE:  N/A. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) and the 
Assignment. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
For Approval:   
 

(1) I move to approve the Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) among the Town of Johnstown, 
Thompson Crossing Metropolitan District No. 3 and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. 

 



(2) I move to approve the Assignment from W.R. Investment, LLC to the Town of Johnstown. 
 
For Denial:  
 

(1) I move to deny approval of the Easement Agreement (Return Flow Pipeline) among the Town of 
Johnstown, Thompson Crossing Metropolitan District No. 3 and Clayton Properties Group II, Inc. 

 
(2) I move to deny approval of the Assignment from W.R. Investment, LLC to the Town of 

Johnstown. 
 
 

Reviewed: 
 

_________________________ 
Town Manager 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Easement Agreement 



















































 
 
 
 
 
 
                    
                               Assignment from 
            WRI to Town of Johnstown 
 
               
 













 
AGENDA ITEM 10D 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2019-17 
 

(Budget Amendment) 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION 

AGENDA DATE: July 1, 2019 
 

ITEM NUMBER: 10D 
 

SUBJECT: FY 2019 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 

ACTION PROPOSED: Approve the Proposed FY 2019 Budget Amendment No. 2 as 
Presented 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 2019-17 

 
PRESENTED BY: Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 

Below is a series of budget amendment requests for the second quarter of 2019. The changes are 
broken into the various funds with descriptions associated with each of the proposed 
amendments. We also provide the Council approved expenditures and estimated fund balance for 
FY 2019 and the proposed expenditures and estimated fund balance based on the amendment. 
All numbers related to ending fund balances and expenditures have been rounded to the extent 
possible. 

 
General Fund: 

1. Caselle Accounts Receivable Module - $10,000 
a. This Caselle module will allow the Town restructure and mapping of the chart of 

accounts to increase transparency and accountability of the various funds. This 
change is necessary based on the presentation during the 2019 Council retreat. 
This restructuring will be in place as we change in FY 2020 to the new funds and 
chart of accounts. 

 
2. K-9 Dog - $2,065 

a. At the Council Retreat, Chief presented an opportunity to acquire a K-9 Dog for 
the Department. While initially planned for 2020, this project if approved to move 
forward now has cost savings through shared costs of Veterinarians and personnel 
who evaluate dogs for potential success who will travel with our team to evaluate 
the dog. These costs will be shared with Estes Park who is also acquiring a K-9 
Dog. The costs shown here are associated with Operation and Maintenance costs 
for the dog, not capital (impact) costs which are presented below in the Impact 
Fund. 

 
3. Police Vehicle Repairs - $34,000 

a. In 2018, the Town experienced a significant hail storm. As part of the damage 
sustained to the community, our police cars were also exposed to the elements 
causing what CIRSA estimated as approximately $43,000 in damage to our police 
fleet. In 2019, CIRSA issued a check to the Town in the amount of $40,879.96 



which will be used to repair all of the vehicles in the fleet (does not include our 
deductible). Our final costs for repairing these vehicles was $75,754.75 based on 
competitive bids and final costs. Accordingly to expend funds for these repairs a 
budget amendment is necessary to incur the costs which will be offset mostly by 
the revenue for this item. Repairs were completed by June 2019. The balance 
necessary is $32,754.75. Staff is requesting this amount be rounded up to $34,000 
for any other vehicle repairs necessary in the Police Department Fleet. 

 
4. Staffing Requests - $91,284 

a. As part of the recent Council Retreat, staff presented information to Council 
related to immediate staffing needs. In the request, 3 positions were asked for 
consideration in this fiscal year. Those positions were as follows: 

i. Planner – This would provide an additional planner for the Planning and 
Development Department. This request was made due to project volume 
and improved responsiveness within the department. The total financial 
burden for the remainder of the fiscal year is estimated at $37,483. 

ii. Public Works Park/Streets – This creates an additional position in the PW 
Street/Park Department. Given the volume of work to maintain our 
community our level of service delivery could improve with an additional 
team member this year. The total financial burden for the remainder of the 
fiscal year is estimated at $27,132. 

iii. Executive/Administrative Assistant – This position would help facilitate 
work for the Town Manager, Planning & Development Director, and 
Public Works Director, and Town Clerk/HR positions. The position would 
answer to the Town Manager for organizational purposes. The total 
financial burden for the remainder of the fiscal year is estimated at 
$26,669. 

 
5. Economic Development - $40,000 

a. This funding would be for economic development purposes of a catalyst project. 
These funds would be used in the analysis, where necessary, to evaluate a specific 
project. 

 
FY 2019 Approved Expenditures: $31,260,100 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance: $24,960,200 

 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures (March 2019): $90,500 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures (July 2019): $177,349 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments: $31,527,949 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $24,733,231 

 
Impact Fee Fund: 

1. K-9 Dog - $81,275 
a. At the Council Retreat, Chief presented an opportunity to acquire a K-9 Dog for 

the Department. While initially planned for 2020, this project if approved to move 
forward now has cost savings through shared costs of Veterinarians and personnel 



who evaluate dogs for potential success who will travel with our team to evaluate 
the dog. These costs will be shared with Estes Park who is also acquiring a K-9 
Dog. The costs shown here are associated regular operations and maintenance of 
the Johnstown PD K-9. These items can only be funded through the General 
Fund. 

 
FY 2019 Approved Expenditures: $ 101,000 
FY 2019 Approved Estimated Ending Fund Balance: $18,546,700 

 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures (March 2019): $ 501,840 
FY 2019 Budget Amendment Expenditures (July 2019: $ 81,275 
FY 2019 Budget Total Expenditures with Amendments: $ 684,079 
FY 2019 Budget Estimated Ending Funds Balance with Amendment: $ 18,418,234 

 
LEGAL ADVICE: 
The resolution was reviewed by the Town Attorney 

 
FINANCIAL ADVICE: 
Funds are available in the various funds to meet the additional expenditures considered in this 
budget amendment. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 
For Approval: 
I move to approve the resolution as presented for the FY 2019 Budget Amendment. 

 
For Denial: 
I move that we deny the resolution as presented for the FY 2019 Budget Amendment 

 
Reviewed and Approved for Presentation: 

 
 
 

Town Manager 



  
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
RESOLUTION 

 
                        No. 2019-17 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 
       



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 BUDGET AND 
APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL SUMS OF MONEY TO DEFRAY EXPENSES 
AND TRANSFERS IN EXCESS OF AMOUNTS BUDGETED FOR THE TOWN 

OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO. 
 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 2018, the Town Council, adopted, by Resolution No. 2018- 
19, the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget (“2019 Budget”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, the Town Council, adopted, Resolution No. 2019-09, 
Amending the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget (“2019 Budget”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, the Town Council, adopted, Resolution No. 2019-09, 
Amending the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget (“2019 Budget”) included a numerical error on 
Section 4, stating an increase in the Impact Fund Amendment from $101,000 to $501,840 
when it should have been $101,000 to $602,840; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown has received a second request 
with a recommendation from Town staff to revise the 2019 spending plan for the funds 
listed below to and the Town Manager has certified that there are revenues available for 
appropriation in excess of those estimated in the 2019 Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, projects have been evaluated and expenditures are being adjusted for the 
2019 operating and capital budgets; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council agrees to modify appropriated expenditures for the 2019 
Budget, insuring the budget will be in balance and that authorized budgeted expenditures 
are amended, as required by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, money is available in the various funds clearly described below in the form 
of the unappropriated or unrestricted reserves. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

 
Expenditures 

 
Section 1. General Fund: 

Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 
that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget General Fund appropriations expense is hereby 
increased from $31,350,600 to $31,527,949 for the purpose of defraying additional 
expenses. 



Section 4. Impact Fee Fund: 
Whereas, during 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown determines 

that the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Impact Fee Fund appropriations expense is hereby 
increased from $602,840 to $684,079 for the purpose of defraying additional expenses. 

 
PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council of the Town of Johnstown on this 1st day of July, 2019. 

 

ATTEST TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, 
COLORADO 

 
 

By: _   By: _   
Diana Seele, Town Clerk Gary Lebsack, Mayor 


	ADPA37A.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP386.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10A

	ADP65C0.tmp
	Oppose
	Favor
	SURVEY STATISTICS
	TOTAL
	Total
	Total

	ADP1446.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10C

	ADPA734.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP2F32.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	ADP14B3.tmp
	_________________________
	Town Manager

	ADP5E6.tmp
	___________________________
	Town Manager

	ADPE061.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10B

	Gateway I-25 Project packet.pdf
	DRAFT Minutes 05-22-19.pdf
	Wednesday, May 22, 2019
	Council Chambers
	I. Call to Order: Chair Montez opened the meeting at 8:39 pm.
	III. Public Comments regards items not on the Agenda: none
	IV. New Business
	a. Approval of Minutes of April 24, 2019 – Motion to approve as written by Commissioner Storms, Seconded by Commissioner Kingsolver, Motion passed 6-0.
	V.   Department Report
	VI. Adjourn: Chair Montez adjourned the meeting at 9:25 p.m.


	I-25 Gateway-PUD No.2 Resubmittal_051019.pdf
	I-25 Gateway-PUD_2019.04.25-PUD-1_2019.05.08
	Sheets and Views
	I-25 Gateway-PUD_2019.04.25-PUD-1


	I-25 Gateway-PUD_2019.04.25-Overall
	Sheets and Views
	I-25 Gateway-PUD_2019.04.25-Overall


	I-25 Gateway-Site Plan 2019.05.08-24x36-Landscape
	Sheets and Views
	I-25 Gateway-Site Plan 2019.05.08-24x36-Landscape



	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	ADPC647.tmp
	Town Council
	Town Hall, Council Chambers
	450 So. Parish Avenue
	7:00 PM
	MISSION STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community.
	Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment (item No. 5) is reserved for citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When sever...

	ADP2A5B.tmp
	TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION
	ITEM NUMBER: 10D
	AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:
	General Fund:
	Impact Fee Fund:
	LEGAL ADVICE:
	FINANCIAL ADVICE:
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT:
	Section 4. Impact Fee Fund:
	ATTEST TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,

	ADPD857.tmp
	AGENDA ITEM 10D

	ADPA597.tmp
	___________________________
	Town Manager




